comment, you should be aware that your entire comment—including your personal identifying information—may be made publicly available at any time. While you can ask us in your comment to withhold your personal identifying information from public review, we cannot guarantee that we will be able to do so.

(Authority: 40 CFR 1506.6, 40 CFR 1506.10, 43 CFR 1610.2, 43 CFR 1610.7–2)

Douglas J. Vilsack,

BLM Colorado State Director.

[FR Doc. 2023-16598 Filed 8-3-23; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 4331-16-P

INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION

[Investigation No. 337-TA-1293]

Certain Automated Put Walls and Automated Storage and Retrieval Systems, Associated Vehicles, Associated Control Software, and Component Parts Thereof; Notice of Final Determination Finding a Violation of Section 337; Issuance of a Limited Exclusion Order and Cease and Desist Orders; Termination of Investigation

AGENCY: International Trade Commission.

ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that the U.S. International Trade Commission has determined that respondents HC Robotics (a.k.a. Huicang Information Technology Co., Ltd.) and Invata, LLC (d/b/a Invata Intralogistics) (collectively, "Respondents") have violated section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, by importing, selling for importation, or selling within the United States after importation certain automated put walls and automated storage and retrieval systems, associated vehicles, associated control software, and component parts thereof that infringe one or more claims of U.S. Patent Nos. 8,622,194 and 10,576,505. The Commission has determined that the appropriate remedies are a limited exclusion order ("LEO") and cease and desist orders ("CDOs") against each of Respondents. The Commission has also determined to set a bond in the amount of 100 percent of the entered value of the excluded articles imported during the period of Presidential review. This investigation is hereby terminated.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:

Richard P. Hadorn, Esq., Office of the General Counsel, U.S. International Trade Commission, 500 E Street SW, Washington, DC 20436, telephone (202) 205–3179. Copies of non-confidential documents filed in connection with this investigation may be viewed on the Commission's electronic docket (EDIS) at https://edis.usitc.gov. For help accessing EDIS, please email EDIS3Help@usitc.gov. General information concerning the Commission may also be obtained by accessing its internet server at https://www.usitc.gov. Hearing-impaired persons are advised that information on this matter can be obtained by contacting the Commission's TDD terminal, telephone (202) 205–1810.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: The Commission instituted this investigation on January 27, 2022, based on a complaint filed by OPEX Corporation ("OPEX") of Moorestown, New Jersey. 87 FR 4290-91 (Jan. 27, 2022). The complaint, as supplemented, alleges violations of section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. 1337 ("section 337"), based on the importation into the United States, the sale for importation, and the sale within the United States after importation of certain automated put walls and automated storage and retrieval systems, associated vehicles, associated control software, and component parts thereof by reason of infringement of certain claims of U.S. Patent Nos. 8,104,601 ("the '601 patent"), 8,276,740 ("the '740 patent"), 8,622,194 ("the '194 patent"), and 10,576,505 ("the '505 patent"). Id. at 4291. The complaint further alleges that a domestic industry exists. Id. The notice of investigation named two respondents: (1) HC Robotics (a.k.a. Huicang Information Technology Co., Ltd.) of Hangzhou City, Zheijang Province, China; and (2) Invata, LLC (d/ b/a Invata Intralogistics) of Conshohocken, Pennsylvania. Id. The Office of Unfair Import Investigations is not named as a party. Id.

On September 13, 2022, the Commission terminated the investigation as to the OmniSort Generation 1 products based on a consent order. Order No. 10 (Aug. 12, 2022), unreviewed by Comm'n Notice (Sept. 13, 2022). On October 11, 2022, the Commission terminated the investigation as to (i) the '601 patent, (ii) the '740 patent, (iii) asserted claims 2-4, 6, 10, 12–17, 19, and 20 of the '194 patent, and (iv) asserted claims 14, 17, and 21 of the '505 patent based on OPEX's partial withdrawal of the complaint. Order No. 12 (Sept. 23, 2022), unreviewed by Comm'n Notice (Oct. 11, 2022). On December 19, 2022, the Commission determined that the technical prong of the domestic industry requirement is satisfied in this

investigation as to the remaining asserted patents—*i.e.*, the '194 and '505 patents. *See* Order No. 17 (Nov. 23, 2022), *unreviewed by* Comm'n Notice (Dec. 19, 2022).

On March 31, 2023, the chief administrative law judge issued a final initial determination ("ID") on violation, which included a recommended determination ("RD") on remedy and bonding. The ID finds violations of section 337 with respect to asserted claims 1 and 5 of the '194 patent and asserted claims 1-5, 7-9, 11-13, 15–16, and 18–20 of the '505 patent. Specifically, the ID finds that: (i) OPEX has standing to assert both the '194 and '505 patents; (ii) the asserted claims listed above are directly infringed by Respondents; (iii) Respondents both induced and contributed to the infringement of each of the asserted claims listed above; (iv) no asserted claim is invalid; and (v) OPEX has satisfied the domestic industry requirement as to both patents. The RD recommends that, should the Commission determine that violations of section 337 occurred, the Commission should: (i) issue an LEO against the Respondents' infringing products; (ii) issue CDOs against each of Respondents; and (iii) set a 100 percent bond for importations of infringing products during the period of Presidential review.

On June 1, 2023, the Commission determined to review in part the final ID with respect to the ID's finding that OPEX has satisfied the economic prong of the DI requirement. 88 FR 37271–73 (June 7, 2023). The Commission also determined to correct typographical/ clerical errors on pages 8, 35, and 38 of the ID. *Id.* The Commission further determined not to review the remaining findings in the ID. Id. The Commission's notice requested written submissions on remedy, the public interest, and bonding. See id. The Commission did not request briefing on any issue under review. Id.

The Commission did not receive submissions on the public interest from the parties pursuant to Commission Rule 210.50(a)(4) (19 CFR 210.50(a)(4)). The Commission also did not receive any submissions on the public interest from members of the public in response to the Commission's **Federal Register** notice. *See* 88 FR 23689 (Apr. 18, 2023).

On June 15, 2023, OPEX and Respondents each filed initial briefs on remedy, the public interest, and bonding. On June 22, 2023, OPEX and Respondents each filed reply briefs.

The Commission, having reviewed the record in this investigation, including the final ID, the parties' petitions and

responses thereto, and the parties' briefs on remedy, the public interest, and bonding, has determined that Respondents have violated section 337 by importing, selling for importation, or selling within the United States after importation certain automated put walls and automated storage and retrieval systems, associated vehicles, associated control software, and component parts thereof that infringe one or more claims of claims 1 and 5 of the '194 patent and claims 1–5, 7–9, 11–13, 15–16, and 18–20 of the '505 patent.

The Commission has determined that the appropriate remedy is: (i) an LEO prohibiting the importation of certain automated put walls and automated storage and retrieval systems, associated vehicles, associated control software, and component parts thereof that infringe one or more claims of claims 1 and 5 of the '194 patent and claims 1-5, 7-9, 11-13, 15-16, and 18-20 of the '505 patent; and (ii) CDOs against each of Respondents. The Commission has also determined that the public interest factors do not preclude issuance of the remedial orders. The Commission has further determined to set a bond in the amount of 100 percent of the entered value of the excluded articles imported during the period of Presidential review (19 U.S.C. 1337(j)).

The Commission issues its opinion herewith setting forth its determinations on certain issues. This investigation is hereby terminated.

The Commission's orders and opinion were delivered to the President and United States Trade Representative on the day of their issuance.

The Commission vote for this determination took place on July 31, 2023.

The authority for the Commission's determination is contained in section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended (19 U.S.C. 1337), and in part 210 of the Commission's Rules of Practice and Procedure (19 CFR part 210).

By order of the Commission. Issued: July 31, 2023.

Sharon Bellamy,

Acting Supervisory Hearings and Information Officer.

[FR Doc. 2023-16635 Filed 8-3-23; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 7020-02-P

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR

Employment and Training Administration

Agency Information Collection Activities; Comment Request; Senior Community Service Employment Program (SCSEP) Programmatic and Performance Requirement

ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: The Department of Labor's (DOL) Employment and Training Administration (ETA) is soliciting comments concerning a proposed revision to the information collection request (ICR) titled, "Senior Community Service Employment Program (SCSEP)." This comment request is part of continuing Departmental efforts to reduce paperwork and respondent burden in accordance with the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995 (PRA).

DATES: Consideration will be given to all written comments received by October 3, 2023.

ADDRESSES: A copy of this ICR with applicable supporting documentation, including a description of the likely respondents, proposed frequency of response, and estimated total burden, may be obtained free by contacting Toni Wilson-King by telephone at 202–693–2922, TTY 1–800–877–8339, (this is not a toll-free number), TTY 1–877–889–5627 (this is not a toll-free number), or by email at SCSEPTransition@dol.gov.

Submit written comments about, or requests for a copy of, this ICR by mail or courier to the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Office of Workforce Investment, Division of National Programs, Tools and Technical Assistance, Senior Community Service Employment Program, 200 Constitution Avenue NW, Washington, DC; by email: SCSEPTransition@dol.gov; or by Fax 202–693–3015.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: Toni Wilson-King by telephone at 202–693–2922 (this is not a toll-free number) or by email at *SCSEPTransition@dol.gov*.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: DOL, as part of continuing efforts to reduce paperwork and respondent burden, conducts a pre-clearance consultation program to provide the general public and Federal agencies an opportunity to comment on proposed and/or continuing collections of information before submitting them to the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) for final approval. This program helps to ensure requested data can be provided in the

desired format, reporting burden (time and financial resources) is minimized, collection instruments are clearly understood, and the impact of collection requirements can be properly assessed.

The purposes of this Information Collection Request are to fulfill the Older Americans Act (Reauthorized by the Supporting Older Americans Act of 2020, Public Law 116-131 (March 25, 2020)), revise SCSEP's Customer Satisfaction Survey collection instruments, ETA 9124A—Participant Survey, ETA 9124B—Host Agency Survey, and ETA 9124C-Employer Survey), and revise the method of administration for the Employer Survey. These changes are required to make the surveys more efficient and less burdensome for respondents, as well as to make them more relevant to the current SCSEP environment and standard business practices (sections 513(b)(1)(E); 42 U.S.C. 3056k(b)(1)(E) and 20 CFR 641.700 and 710).

The SCSEP, authorized by title V of the Older Americans Act (OAA), is the only Federally sponsored employment and training program targeted specifically to low-income, older individuals who want to enter or reenter the workforce. The SCSEP performance measures, as specified in the SCSEP 2018 Final Rule and section 513 of the OAA (42 U.S.C. 3056k, as amended by Pub. L. 114–144) are as follows:

(a) Hours (in the aggregate) of community service employment.

(b) The percentage of project participants who are in unsubsidized employment during the second quarter after exit from the project.

(c) The percentage of project participants who are in unsubsidized employment during the fourth quarter after exit from the project.

(d) The median earnings of project participants who are in unsubsidized employment during the second quarter after exit from the project.

(e) Indicators of effectiveness in serving employers, host agencies, and project participants; and

(f) The number of eligible individuals served, including the number of participating individuals described in subsection (a)(3)(B)(ii) or (b)(2) of section 518.

This information collection measures effectiveness in serving employers, host agencies, and project participants, and is subject to the PRA. A Federal agency generally cannot conduct or sponsor a collection of information, and the public is generally not required to respond to an information collection, unless it is approved by OMB under the PRA and displays a currently valid OMB Control Number. In addition, notwithstanding